
not only on the present item, hut also on the
paragraphs immediately prece<1ing, so as to
create a picture of the general thinking in the
Committee.

Mr. KVROU (Greece) asked the United States
representative if the nomination of the governor­
general was covered by article 2.

Mr. JESSUP (United States of America) re­
plied in the negative. He said that article 11
provided that the governor-general should be ap­
pointed by the Trusteeship Council and be
responsible to it.

:Mr. AL-AsIL (Iraq) agreed with Mr. Parodi
that, if it were possible within the provisions
of the Charter, it would be more suitable to use
the term "PI ovisional regime for Palestine". In
that case, the term "chief administrator" or
"administrator-general" should replace the term
"governor-general".

The meeting rose at 1.25 p.m.

HUNDRED AND THIRTY-THIRD MEETING

Held at Lake Success. New York, on Friday,
30 April 1948, at 3 p.m.

Chairman: Mr. T. F. TSIANG (China).

1~. Continuation of the diSCUSSion of the
working paper circulated by the
United States delegation (document
A/C.1/277)

The CHAIRMAN asked the representative of
Colombia, in his capacity as President of the
Security Council, to inform the First Committee
of the text of the telegram he had just received
from the Truce Committee for Palestine.

Mr. LOPEz (President of the Security Coun­
cil) read out the following telegram (document
S/732) which had been sent from Jerusalem
on 29 April 1948 by the Chairman of the Truce
Commission for Palestine:

"General situation Palestine deteriorating
rapidly. Governments departments closing daily
and normal activities country coming to a stand­
still. The Jewish Agency is acting as a general
organizing body for Jewish areas and attempting
to replace suspended governmental activities.
Arab areas are depending on municipal authori­
ties within the townships and villages without
any central authority. Telegraph facilities ceased
in most areas as have telephonic trunk lines.
Telephones still work locally hut with decreasing
efficiency. Lydda airport is out of operation and
regular air communication and airmail service
in and out of country have stopped. Intensity
of fighting is increasing steadily. Camps and
other important areas vacated by British forces
immediately become battlegrounds. Operations
en larg~r and more important scale than Haifa

commentaires non seulement sur le point en
cours d'ex8.men, mais aussi sur les paragraphes
qui le prlcedent immediatement, de manicre a
donner une idee de I'opinion gcnerale de la
Commission.

11. KYROU (Grece) demande au representant
des Etats-Unis si l'article 2 s'applique a la no­
mination du gouverneur general.

1'1. JESSUP (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) repond
que non. L'article 11, declare-t-il, stipule que le
gouverneur general sera nomme par le Conseil
de tutelle et responsable devant lui.

1'1. AL-AsIL (lrak) pense, comme 11. Parodi,
que si les dispositions de la Charte le permettent,
il conviendrait plutot d'utiliser l'expression "Re­
gime provisoire pour la Palestine". Dans ce
cas, il faudrait remplacer le titre de "gouverneur
general" par "administrateur superieur" ou
"administrateur general".

La seance est levee a 13 h. 25.

CENT-TRENTE-TROISIEME SEANCE

Tenue a Lake Success, New-York, le 'l'endredi
30 avril 1948, a 15 heures.

President: M. T. F. TSIANG (Chine).

19. Suite de la discussion du document
de travail distribue par la deh~gation

des Etats-Unis (document A/C.1/277)

Le PRESIDENT prie le representant de la
Colombie, en sa qualite de President du Conseil
de securitc, de ccmmuniquer a la Premiere
Commission le texte cl'un telegramme qu'il vient
de recevoir de la Commission de trcve en
Palestine.

11. LOPEz (President du Conseil de secunte)
donne lecture du teh~grammesuivant (document
S/732) envoye de Jerusalem le 29 avril 1948
par le President de la Commission de trcve pour
la Palestine:

"Situation generale Palestine empire rapide­
ment. Chaque jour nouveaux offices gouverne­
mentaux arrctent fonctions. Activite normale
pays s'achernine vers paralysie. Agcnce juive
agit comme organe admini~tratif dans les zones
juivcs et s'efforce de remplacer les activites gou­
vernementales suspendues. Zones arabes dirigees
par autorites municipales dans les villes et
villages sans aucune autoritc centrale. Tcle­
graphe ne fonctionne plus dans la plupart des
regions ainsi que grandes lignes telcphoniques.
Telephone fonctionne encore localement mais de
mains en mains. Aerodrome Lydda ne fonctionne
plus et toute communication acnenne ainsi que
tout service aerien dans et hors Palestine ont
cesse. Combats s'intensifient constamment.
Camps et autres zones importantes abandonnes
par forces britanniques deviennent immediate-

175



ARTICLE 6 OF THE WORKI~G PAPER:
PRESERVATIO~ OF ORDER I

!\lahmoud Bey FAWZI (Egypt) said that he I

could not agree with the point of view of the
French delegation, as stated at the 132nd meet­
ing, according to which trusteeship would be a
continuation of the ~landate. The United
~at ions was not the successor of the League of
N at ions and did not inherit its responsibilities.
The mandate sp;tem no longer existed ancl th~

only regime possible after the termination of t.he
~Iandate was either independence or trusteeshIp.

expected shortly. Rumours tending to increase I
the nervous tension in the country."

The French and Norwegian representatives
had alluded, during that same meeting, to the
possibility of finding a system which would not
he trusteeship. ~Iahmoud Bey Fawzi could not
afTrce with the Xorwegian point of view which
o~itted the guarantees given by an article ?f
the Charter to populations under a trusteeshIp
sYstem. France, on the other hand, thought It
\~'as possible to devise a temporary administr~­
tion system which would not be trusteeshIp
proper: 1'h.... Charter did not provirle for any such
system. If, however, such a system gave more
guarantees than those provided for in Chapter
XII, it would be acceptable. 110reover,
~ lahmoud Bc\' F awzi would also be ready to
support the Norwegian proposal if it gave the
population of Palestine no fewer guarantees
than those pnwided for in Chapter XII of the
Charter, and thus come nearer to the creation
of a single democratic Palestine.

\\'hen examining the possibility of setting up
a system not provided for by the Charter, it was
necessary not to confuse the position of Pales­
tine with that of other territories such as, for
instance, Danzig and Trieste.

ARTICLE 7, PARAGRAPH 2:
APPEAL TO FOREIGN FORCES

~Ir. JESSCl' (United States of America) said
that quc.Qiol1 was closely linked with the point
\\hleh had just been discussed. The United States
\'0 ()r!\in~ p;lpl'f wa." hased on the hope that the
provi<onal regime established by the United
:\ atic)Jls would he supported by both the Jews
;ll1d Arabs, and not upon the assumption that
such a IT!Time would encounter the same obstacles.., -

as the enforcement of partition would have.
That was why the \\ orking paper mentioned
a police force and not an army. Nevertheless it
would be unrcalist:c not to take into account
the possibility that some elements might not
."lll1111it themselves to the cOIltrol of the authori­
ties. C()n~equently, there was need for an ade-

ment champs de bataille. On s'attend a tout
moment a operations de plus grande envergure
et plus importantes qu'a Halfa. Rumeurs con­
tribuent a accroitre tension nerveuse dans le
pays."

ARTlCLF 6 DU OOCUl\IENT DE TRAVAIL: MAINTIE:'J
DE L'ORDRE

:\fahmoud Bey FAWZI (Egypte) declare qu'il
ne peut admettre le point de vue exprime par le
represcntant de la France a la 132cme seance,
seIon lequel le regime de tutelle serait la con­
tinuation du ~fandat. L'Organisation des N a­
tions Unies n'est pas le successeur de la Societe
des Nations et n'herite pas de ses responsabilitcs.
Le systeme du mandat n'exlste plus. Le scul re­
gime possible aprcs la fin du ~fandat est l'indc­
pendance, ou la tutelle.

Les representants de la France et de la
::\orvcge ont, au cours de la mcme seance, laisse
entendre qu'il serait possiblc de trouver un
systcme qui ne serait pas cclui dc la tuteIle.
~lahmoud Bey Fawzi nc peut se rallier au point
de vue norvcgien qui omet les garanties donnces
par un article de la Charte aux populations
placces sous le regime de tutelle. La Franc<',
d' autre part, croit qu'il est possible de trouver
un systeme d'administration provisoire qui ne
~er<lit pas le regime de tutelle .proprement dit.
La Charte ne prcvoit pas de semblable systemc.
Si toutefois ce regime donnait plus de garanties
que n'en prevoit le Chapitre XII, il serait ac­
ceptable. De plus, 11ahmoud Bey Fawzi serait
prct a appuyer aussi la proposition norvcgienne
si eIle donnait a la population de Palestine

, autant de garanties qu'en prcvoit le Chapitre
XII de la Charte et si eIle se rapprochait ainsi
de la creation d'une Palestine unitaire democra­
tique.

Lorsqu'on examine la possibilite d'etablir un
un systcme non prevu par la Charte, il faut
cviter de confondre la position de la Palestine
avec celIe de territoires comme, par exemple,
Dantzig et Trieste.

ARTICLE 7, PARAGRAPHE 2: APPEL A DES
FORCES ETRANGERES

1\1. JESSUP (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) declare
que cette question est etroitement lice au point
qui vient d'ctre discute. Le document de travail
des Etats-Unis est fonde sur l'espoir que le
regime provisoire instaure par l'Organisation des
l';ations Unies aura l'appui des Juifs et des
Arabcs, et non sur la supposition que ce regime
aura a affronter les memes problcmes qu'aurait
rencontrc l'application du partage. C'est pour
ceUe raison que le document de travail men­
tionne une force de police et non pas une armce.
:Mais ce serait ne pas voir les choses d'un point
de vue rcaliste que de ne pas envisager que cer­
tains elements pourraient ne pas se soumettre au
controle des autorites. Par consequent, une force

176



quate armed fo~~e, It ~as also nece~ary to bear
in mind the pOSItion whIch would anse when the
governor-general assumed his duties, before there
had been time to organize a police force. It was
to meet the needs of such a contingency that
paragraph 2 of article 7 of the worki~g paper
the governor-general to call upon certam ~Ilem­

bers of the United Nations to assist him in
maintaining order in Palestine. The names of
these members had been left blank because the
United States had not yet received any informa­
tion as to those ~lembers which might be pre­
pared to take a share i~ ,t~~s responsibility. The
details of these responsibihtIes would be set out
in a separate protocol signed by the ~Iembers

in question.

~lr. Jessup repeated that the United ?t~~es
was ready to undertake its share of respo~sIblhty

for the provision of the polic~.force durmg t~e
truce and during the provlSlOnal trusteeshIp
system, but was not prepared to act alone.

The suggestion made by the Indian n:I?res~n­

tative at the 132nd meeting for the utIhzatlOn
of volunteer forces only to face all contingencies
should be examined in detail at the same time as
the provisions of the United States working
paper.

ARTICLE El: CITIZENSHIP

:Mr. JESSUP (United,State~ of ~~eric~) said
that the provisions dealmg WIth CItIzenshIp ha?
been included in the working paper because It
was felt that this question deserved consideration
despite the provisional character of th~ proposed
regime. The United States de1egatlOn w?uld
agree, however, to this question ~eing exammed
in a shorter and consequently a SImpler manner.
It would even accept its complete eliminat~on
although it believed that be~ore such a~ actIon
were taken it would be WIse to examme the
suggestions contained in the working paper.

The representative of the United States then
read out four paragraphs of article 8 containing
provisions suggested in matters of nati~nality.

These provisions were not aimed at settlm.g all
possible contingencies as this would req~Ire a
,'erv detailed statute on the question. If It was
dec'ided to include provisions on nationality in
the trusteeship agreement, such provisions ought
to be in the simplest possible form. In this part
of its working paper the delegation of the United
States had drawn on the draft statute for Je­
rusalem (document A/541 ) which had been pro­
posed by the Trusteeship Council.

Sir ~lohammed ZAFRULLAH KHA~ (Paki­
stan) had understood that the trusteeship
sche~e proposal was based upon a status quo
agreement. As legislation governing citizenship
existed in Palestine at present there was no need
for finding new definitions which could only
complicate the situation,

~Ir. DE ~IARCHE~A (Dominican Republic)
pointed out that the English text referred to

armee adequate est necessaire. Il but aUSSI
penscr a la situation qui se prcsentera lorsque
le gouverneur general entrera en fonetioll avant
d'avoir eu le temps d'organiser une force de
police. C'e5t la raison pour laquclle le para­
graphe 2 de l'article 7 du document de travail
contient une disposition qui pcrmettrait au
gouvcrneur general de faire appc1 a certains
~femhres des Xations Unies pour raider a
maintenir l'ordre en Palestine. Lc_" noms de ces
~feInhres ont ete laissc." en blanc puisque les
Etats-Lnis n'ont pas encore re(11 cl'indic:ltioTls
quant aux ~Iembres qui scr:lient di~p()s{., a p:1.r­
tager cette re-"pons:lbilite, Les dt~t:lils de leurs
engagements seraient dt~fillis cbns un accord
distinct signe par ces ~Iembres.

~I. Jessup repete que les Etats-Cni." sont prcts
a prendre leur part de respol1s:lhililC dans rcta­
blissement d'une force de police pendant la
treve et pendant le regime provisoire de tutelle,
mais ils n'ont pas I'intention cl'agir seuls.

La suggestion faite p:1.r Ie repn~sentZlnt de
rlnde, au cmIrs de la 132cme seance, tcndant a
n'utiliser qu'une force de "olontaires pour hire
face a toutes les situations, dnit (-trt' (t1\di(~c en
detail en meme temps que le", dispositions tIu
document de travail des Etats-C nis.

ARTlr.LE 8: CITOYEX,,:ET l~

~f. JESSUP (Etats-Cnis d';\mcrique) declare
que des (I:spositions concernant la qualite de
citoyen ont ete prC\"lICS dans le document de
tra"ail parce qu'on cstimc que ('ctte question
devrait retenir l'attention malgrc le caracttTe
provisoire du regime envisage. La delcc:ation des
Etats-Cnis accepterait cepenlbnt de traiter
cette question crune mani('.re plu~ hrl'\"(', ct par­
tant plus simple. ElIe en accepterait mCll1e r('·]i­
minatioll complete mais croit qu'il serait utile
que 1'011 ctudie, aupara,'ant, b suggestion [on­
tenue dans le document de tra'"ail.

Le representant des Etats-l~nis cIonIlr alars
lecture des quatre p:lragraphes de l'articlc 8
contellant les dispositions prop()sce~ en matilTe
de citoyennete. Ces dispositions 11'(lnt pa." pour
ohjet de rrglcr tous Ic." cas pos,,,il,lcs: pour cc
faire, un statut cxtrcmemcnt <l{taille serait
necessaire. Si 1'0n decidait cl'inclure lbns l'ac­
cord de tutelle des dispositions relatin's ;1 la
citoyennete. elIes de\'raient ctre aussi simples que
pos,,,ihle, Dans cette p:lrtie de S011 dnCUTlH'llt de
tra\'Zlil, la. d(~ll~gation des Et:lts-l'nis s\·"t ill'pirce
du projet de statut pour .Jerusalcm par le Comeil
de tutelIe (document A/541 ),

Sir ~Iohammed ZAFRULLAH Kll:\:\' (PakIs­
tan '\ a CfU comprendre que le plan de tutelIe
a\'ait pour ha"e un accord pour maintenir le
statu quo. La Palestine ayanL a l'hcure actuelle,
des lois concernant la qualite de [itoyen, il n'cst
pa."i ncces."aire de trom'er de nouvelles definitions
qui ne pourraicnt que compliqucr la situ:ltion.

~f. DE ~IARCHE~A (Republique Dominicainc)
fait ohsen'er que le texte anglais emploic in-

177



both "citizenship" and "nationality" without
drawing any difIer~nce between these t\vo words.
It seemed that some confusion had resulted
from some drawing on the notions of French
civil law ar-d others on Anglo-Saxon common
law. The heading of article 8 was "Citizcnshii'
whereas the text obviousl\" ref\.rred to what was
the concept of nationality. From the legal point
of view, the two concepts were distinct. The
conception of nationality was clearly defined
in all the constitutions but the same did not
apply to citizenship.

1Iahmoud Bey FAWZI (Egypt) said he could
not accept article 8 of the working paper which
aimed at granting citizenship to all the residents
of Palestine, without the population of Pales­
tine being able to set aside such people, for in­
stance~ as terrorists and fomenters of trouble
and revolutions. Any person who had resided
three months in Palestine could become a citizen,
whereas the United States legislation contained
a multitude of provisions aimed at preventing
undesirable persons from entering the territory
even as tourists.

To grant Palestinian nationality to any
stranger who had resided three months was
tantamount to oper:in..; wide the (-Jrcters of
Palestine to everyone.

11r. EL-KHOURI (Syria) shared the opmIOn
of the representative of the Dominican Republic
regarding the distinction which should be dra\vn
between the terms "nationality" and citizenship".
The trusteeship agreement could not contain
legislative provisions on this question which was
governed by existing legislation in Palestine. Be­
sides, such an attitude should be adopted re­
garding all points which were already governed.
by existing legislation.

~Ir. PARODI (France) asked that the Com­
mittee be enlightened on the main lines of Pale,·
tinian legislation in matters of nationality.

~1r. E"TEZAM (Iran) observed that such in­
formation could be provided by the Jewish
Agency, the Arab Higher Committee or the
Commission for Palestine.

~lr. EL-KIIOCRI (Syria) said that the United
Kingdom was in a better position for enlighten­
ing the Committee on that point.

~'lr. CREECH JO"ES (United Kingdom) said
that legislation was very complex and that it had
been recently revised. He would provide some
information on this point at the end of the
meeting.

11r. PARODI (France) noted with regret that
the Jewish Agency and the Arab Higher Com­
mittee were not contributing to this exchange
of \·icws at a time when concrete points were
heing broached. He appealed to both parties to
help the Committee in its work.

differemment les mots citizenship (citoyennete)
et nationality (nationalite). Il semble que cer­
taines confusions proviennent du fait que les uns
s'inspirent des conceptions du droit civil fran~ais

et les autres de ceIles du droit commun angle­
saxon. Le titre de l'article 8 est "citoyenllete"
alors que le texte se rHere manifestement a ce
qui est le concept de nationalite. Juridiquement,
les deux concepts sont distincts. L'idee de natio­
nalite est bien definie dans toutes les constitu­
tions. Il n'en est pas de meme de la citoyennete.

:Mahmoud Bey FAWZI (Egypte) declare qu'il
ne peut pas accepter l'article 8 du document de
travail qui tend a faire de tous les rcsidants de
Palestine des citoyens sans que la population de
Palestine ait son mot a dire pour ecarter, par
exemple, les terroristes, les fomenteurs de trou­
bles ou de revolutions. Toute personne qui aurait
rcside trois rnois en Palestine pourrait devenir
citoyen alors que la lcgislation americaine, par
exemple, contient une foule de dispositions
visant a empecher l'entree ees indesirables sur
le territoire des Etats-Unis, meme a titre de
touristes.

Donner la nationalite palestinienne a tout
etranger qui aurait reside trois mois eq"ivaut ~

ollvrir lal'g~ment le.~ frontierts de la Palestine ~

tout le monde.

1\1. EL-KHOURI (Sy';e) partage l'opinio.l du
repfl~.sentant de la Rcpublique Dominicaine au
sujct de la distinction qu'il convient de faire
entre les termes "nationalite" et "citoyennete".
I..'accord de tutelle ne devrait pas contenir des
dispositions legislatives sur cette question qlli est
rcglCe par les lois en vigueur en Palestine. On
devrait d'ailleurs suivre cette ligne de cont11.lite
pour tous les point'; qui sont reglcs par les lois
cxistantes.

1\1. PARODl (France) demande que la Com­
mission soit ccIairce sur les grandes lignes de la
legislation palestinienne en maticre de nationa­
lite.

:\'1. E~TEZAM (Iran) fait observer que ces
renseignements pourraient etre fournis par
I'Agence juive, le Haut Comite arabe ou la
Commission des Nations Unies pour la Palestine.

~f. EL-KHOURI (Syrie) indique que le
Royaume-Uni est mieux a meme d'eclairer la
Commission sur cc point.

:\1. CREECH-JO"ES (Royaume-Uni) declare
que la legislation est trcs complexe et a ete re­
manice rccemment. Il donnera quelques ren­
~cignements ace sujet en fin de seance.

~1. PARODI (France) note avec regret que
l' :\gcnce juive et le Haut Comite arabe ne con­
tribuent pas aux cchanges de vues alors qu'on
ahnrde la discussion de points precis. Il fait appcl
aux deux parties pour qu'elles apportent leur
appui au travail de la Commission.

liS



ARTICLES 13 AND 15: GENERAL POWERS .. ND
DIERGENCY POWERS OF THE GOVERNOR-GENERAL

ARTICLES 13 ET 15: POUVOIRS GE~tR ..\LJX ET
POUVOIRS EXCEPTIO~::\'ELS DU GOUVER:"EUR

GENERAL

l\Ir. jESSUP (United States of America) !':aid
that this problem had already been discussed in
connexion with article 7, paragraph 2, of the
draft trusteeship agn~ment. Article 13 provided
for the governor-general to be the representative
of the United Nations in Palestine and to exercise
his executive and administrative authority on
behalf of the United Nations, in conformity
with the trusteeship agreement and the instruc­
tions of the Trusteeship Council. In view of the
cvcnts in Palestine the provisions relating to
governmental authority should be rendered suf­
ficiently supple. It was advisable to promote an
autonomous government in Palestine, since it
,..-as obvious that government could not be main­
tained witho~lt t~e co-operation of those it gov­
erned, but it was also necessary to adopt a realis­
tic approach, The first duty of the government
was to govern and it was necessary, therefore,
to enable the governor-general to act in case of
cmergency and, if need be, to legislate by means
of decrees. The draft trusteeship agreement took
into account this dual conception of g'J"ernment
during the provisional period.

Sir l'~roha!"timed ZAFRULLAH KHAN (Paki­
stan) suggested that this point, on which he
shared the views of the United States representa­
tive, as well as other points of the working paper,
be r:iven careful comideration by a small sub-

u '
committee,

!\f. jESSUP (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) declare
que ce problcme a deja etc discutc apropos du
paragr(lphe 2 de l'article 7 du projet d'accord
de tuteIle. L'article 13 prcvoit que le goU\"crneur
~cneral representera rOrganisation des ~atiom;

Unies en Pale.<;tine et exercera !cs pouvoirs
executif et administratif au nom de rOrganisa­
tion, conformcrnent a l'accord de tutelle et sous
la direction du Conseil de tutellc. Vu les cvcne­
ments de Palestine, il faut rendre assez soupIes
les dispositions relatives a l'autoritc gouverne­
mentale. 11 est souhaitable d'encourager un
gouvernement autonome en Palestine, puisqu'il
est cvident qu'un gouvernement ne peut pas ctre
maintenu sans la cooperation des gouvernrs,

° '1 r " , I' T 0' f .
m~4'S 1 "aut ,-~re f -:a lst~ . .L.a pfcrr:ne oT1':'tHm
d'un gouvernement, c'est de gouverner. 11 est
donc indispensable de prcvoir que le gouverneuJ'
general pourra agir ell cas d'urgence ct, all be·
501n, lcgifcrer par decrets, Le projct d'accord de
tuteJle tient compte de cette conception dualiste
de goU\"Crnement pendant cette periode (le tra.n­
sition.

Sir 1Iohammed ZAFRCLLAH KHA~ (Pakis­
tan) su~gcre que ce point, sur lequcl il partage
les vues du representant des [tats-Dni.'" ainsi que
d'autre points figurant au document de travail
soient etudies avec soin par une sous-commi.,,,ion
restieinte.

ARTICLE 29: IMMIGRATION ARTICLE 29: Il\I1\IIGRATIO~

1fr, jESSUP (United States of America) noted
that that was the question which gave rise to
most difficulties. The suggestion included in
article 29 were only tentative and had been
formulated in the hepe of providing the two I

parties with a basis for discussion and agree­
ment.

~f. JESSCP (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) note
CJlle la que$tion de rimmigration est relic qui
soulcvc le plus de difTicultc.", Lcs sug~e~"tions for­
mulecs a l'article 20 ne sont bites qll'a titre pro­
visoire dans rcspoir de foumir allx parties une
base de discus,<;ion et d' accord.

L{' premipr paragraphc de cct article ctahlit
le pr;ncipc ~c1()n lcqucl rimmigTation en Pales-

I tine s'efTectuera en fonction de la capacitt~ d'ab­
sorption de ce pays telle qu'dle sera dt-terminee
par le goU\"erneur general, en tenant compte des
exigenc('$ de l'ordre public, de la sccllrite, de la
moralitc et de l'hygicne publiqllc, et sur lITle
base de non-discrimination.

The first paragraph of this article laid down
the principle that immigration into Palestine
should be in accordance with the absorptive
capacity of Palestine, as determined by the
governor-general and subject to the requirements
of public order and security, public morals and
public hygiene, and not on a non-discriminatory !

basis.

The second paragraph provided for the im­
migration of j ewish displaced persons on a
monthly quota to be determined after careful
consideration and negotiations, It had been
stated, during the previous discussion, that the
problem of immigration should be examined in
the light of the principle expressed in the pre­
amble and according to which the trustee..."hip
a~reement could not prejudice the rights or
positions of the parties concerned, At first
tholl~ht, the adoption of the status quo might
appear as the more supple solution, but the two
parties had made it clear to the Committee
that they would not accept it, each for different

Le second paragraphe pre\"oit l'immigration
de personnes dcplacces juives dans les limites
d'un contingent mensucl a dctenniner aprl's une
etude approfondie et des negociations. On a
declare, all cours du dcbat anterieur, que le
problcme de l'immigratinn dcvait ctre examine
a la lumicre au principc contenll dans le prcam­
bule sr!nn lequcI l'accord de tlltelle ne peut
porter prejudice aux droit" nu positions d' au­
cune des partic.s en cause. I.'adoption dll slatli
quo parait plus soupIc a premi;'re vue, mai." le.<;
deux parties ont dit qu'cIles ne l'acccpteraient
pas, chacune pour des raisons diffcrente.s. Il con­
viendrait done que l'AssemhlCe generale s'cfforce

179



reasons. The General Assembly should try, there­
fore, after consulting the communities of Pales­
tine and the yarious international organizations
compo::-ing the United Nations system, to find a
more equitable solution to this problem.

l\lahmoud BLy FAWZI (Egypt) said that
article 29 contained two principles which were
unacceptable. The first concerned the absorptive
capacity of Pa1cstine. That principle constituted
the most flagrant infringement 1,pon the rights
of a country. It was an infringement upon sover­
eignty, or rather a mortgage upon the future. It
was also necessary to take into account the nor­
mal increase in the indigenous population. Did
the absorpti'\.·e capacity refer to the present or to
the fu. e? "'ho was to decide on this? Not the
Palestinian people by democratic meam:, but, no
doubt, some outside authority.

The second principle mentioned in Article 29,
rdating to the immigration of displaced Jewish
persons into Palestine, was also unacceptable.
~1atters would be difIerent if this referred to
displaced persons in general, Palestine was
willing to take its share. But to admit that dis­
placed persons could immigrate into Palestine
because they \\'ere Jewish amounted to recogniz­
ing that Lile Jews throughout the world had, as
Jews, the rights on Palestine. The \Vhite Pc-per
of 1939 stated that the Jewish national home,
contemplated in the Balfour Declaration had
already been achie\'ed, and that the promise
made to the Jews had been kept.

~b.hmoud Bey Fawzi recalled that he had
m.ked the Secretariat and the Economic and
Social C )Ul1cil for a report to outline what had
been done, or rather what had not been done,
for cbplaccd persons. This was a collective and
world problem and not an exclusively Palestinian
onc. He shareL: the vie\vs of the representative of
the United ~'tates and stressed that the solution
to this problem should draw its inspiration from
the principles of equity and impartiality.

S;r ~.Iohammcd ZAFRL'LLAH KHA'\' (Paki­
staa) said that if the rights of the pa.ties were
nut to be prejudiced, as st~pulated in the pre­
amble, articles 8, 29 and 31 of the document
~.hollld be eliminatcd. These thrce articles dealt
prrrisc1y \\"ith those points on which no agrce­
ment \\"as po;;siblc bet\veen the parties at the
present sta.<:,T. Consequentl), questions relating to
iI111:1i.~) ati()l1, nationality and land purchase
should be left in status quo. If the partics were
to reach agreement on those three questions,
there would he no problem any more. But the
draft tl"l!stecship agreemcnt had been put for­
ward prcci:;c1y because such an agreement was
impmsibL'. Time was short. Those three funda­
mcntal problems could certainly not bc soh'Cd
in fifteen days. The aim of the trusteeship regime
\\'as to .~ain time so as to enable the parties
t(J try and soh'c all these questions. It was sur­
prisilH;, thcrefore, that a:tempts should he made
to :'1 ;i\":- those prohlems in the draft trusteeship
agreement. Any attempt of this kind would

de trouver une solution juste du probleme, apres
avoir consulte lcs communautes de Palestine et
les diverses organisations internationales eompo­
sant l'Organisation des Nations Unies.

:Mahmoud Bey FAWZI (Egypte) declare que
l'article 29 contient deux principes inacceptables.
Le premier est celui qui concerne la eapacite
d' absorption de la Palestine. Cette notion cons­
titue l'atteinte la plus flagrante aux droits d'un
pays. Elle constitue une atteinte a la souverai­
nete, ou plutot une hypotheque sur l'avenir. 11
faut aussi tenir compte de l'accroissement
normal de la population indigene. La eapacite
d'absorption s'applique-t-elle au present ou a
l'avenir? Qui en dccidera? Non pas le peuple
palestinien par des moyens democratiques, mais
sans doute des autorites venues du dehors.

Le sfc(md principe, enonce a l'article 29 et
concernant l'immigration en Palestine de per­
sonnes dcplacees juives, est aussi inacceptable.
S'il s'agissait de personnes deplacees en general,
il en serait autrement: la Palestine veut bien en
prendre sa quote-part. 1\lais admettre que les
personnes deplacees peuvent immigrcr en Pales­
tine parce qu'elles sont juives, c'est reconnaitre
que les Juifs du monde entier, en tant que tels,
ont des droits sur la Palestine. Le Livre blanc
de 1939 declare que le foyer national juif, tel
qu'il est envisage par la Dcclaratjon Balfour,
a ete realise et que la promesse faite aux Juifs
a ete tenue.

1\lahmoud Bey FP.W'Z-J. rappelle qu'il a de­
mande au Secretariat et au Conseil economique
et social de faire un rapport sur ce qui a ete
fait ou plutot ce qui n'a pas cte fait pour les
personnes deplacees. C~ problcme est un pro­
bleme collectif, mondial, et non exclusivement
un probleme palestinien. Il partage les vues des
reprcscntants des Etats-Unis et affirme que la
solution de ce probleme doit s'inspirer de prin­
cipes d'equite et d'impartialite.

Sir ~lohammed ZAFRULLAH KHAN (Pakis­
tan) declare que si l'on ve1..lt, conformement aux
prescriptions du prcambule, eviter de porter
prejudice aux droits des parties, il faut eliminer
les articks 8, 29 et 31 du document de travail.
ecs trois articles traitent precisement des points
sur lesqucls aucun accord n'est possible entre les
parties au stade actuel. 11 faut done laisser dans
le statu quo les questions relatives a l'immigra­
tion, a la nationalite et au regime foncier. Si
les parties arrivaient a un accord sur ces trois
questions, il n'y aurait plus de probleme. C'est
preciscment parce que cet accord est impossible
~ue le plan de tutelle a ete propose. Le ~fandat

~e tennine le 15 mai et il n'y a rien maintenant
pour le remplacer. Le temps pres..se. Il est cer­
tain qu'on ne peut resondre en quinze jours ees
trois problcmes fondamentaux. Le hut du re­
gime de tutelle est de gagner du temps de
manicre a permettre aux parties d'essayrr de
rcsoudre ensemhle ees q:lcstions. 11 est done
surprenant que l'on essaie de resoudre ces pro-

180



onl\' rekindle divergencies between the parties
instead of leading to an agreement. The status
quo was the only solution which did not pre­
judice the rights, claims and position of the
two parties.

1\1r. :M.ALIK (Lebanon) endorsed the views
voiced by the representative of Pakistan on the
three questions of nationality, immigration and
land purchase. If the aim was to bring about a
less strained situation, which in its turn would
prepare the ground for further agreement, then
it was necessary to avoid laying down hard and
fast rules. The absorptive capacity of the country
was a problem of an economic character.

1\lr. 1\lalik stated in this connexion that the
references he made at the 123rd meeting to
certain particularly outstanding advocates of the
establishment of a separate and sovereign Jewish
State in part of the Palestinian territory were
mainly aimed at stressing the following true
fact: it was impossible to adopt a similar position
without having carefully considered the material
and economic conditions with which this State
would be faced in the midst of the Arab world.
The non-Arab and non-~loslemworld could not
therefore "will" a Jewish State w. thout at the
same time "willing" its fundamental conditions.
\ Vhoever was in favour of a sovereign and in­
dependent Jewish State must realize how the
latter would face the antagonism of the Near
East and of the entire Arab world.

l\'1r. EL-KHOURI (Syria) said that no Arab
State or people could agree to a text which
provided for further immigration into Palestine.
In fact, the Arabs had never ceased voicing
their opposition to the immigration that had
followed a l\landate, the provisions of which had
been adopted in their absence.

The prOVlSlOns concerning immigra~ion

should be left to the decision of the legislative
organs of an independent and democratic Pales­
tinian State, for these organs were the only ones
competent to deal with the matter.

!\Ir. K YROU (Greece) shared the regret pre­
viously expressed by the representative of France
that, at this crucial moment in the discussion,
the Committee had not been informed of the
views of the parties concerned.

The CHAIRl\I:\~ remarked that one of those
parties had asked to J'C heard at the close of
the debate on the various problems raised by
the trusteeship proposal.

1\1r. PARODl (France) remarked that the at­
titude of both parties toward a question as
crucial as immigration would undoubtedly be
absolutely unyielding.

On the other hand, it would be difficult to ask
the General Assembly to rescind its previous reso­
lution if the proposed regime had little chance

blemes dans le plan meme de t1.1telle. Toute ten­
tative de cc genre, au lieu d'amener raccord des
parties, ne fera qu'aviver leur desaccord. La
seule chose qui ne prejugera pas les droits, re­
vendications et positions des deux parties, c'est lr
statu quo.

1\1. l\1ALIK (Liban) souscrit aux declarations
faites par le representant du Pakistan ~ur lc.,;
trois questions de la nationalite, de I'immigra­
tion et du regime foncier. Si le but est d' amener
une detente, elle-mcme preparant un aeccrd
ultcrieur, il ne faut pas vi5er a des rrgles trop
strictes. En ce qui concerne la capacite d'absorp­
ti~n du pays, le probleme est d'ordre eeono­
mlque.

A ce propos, 1\1. l\1alik indique (en rcponse
aux remarques faites par le representant de
I'Druguay a la 131 erne seance) que, dans son
esprit, les allusions qu'il a faites, a la 123cme
seance, a certains reprcsentants particulierement
favorables a l'etablissement d,un Etat Juif dis­
tinct et souverain sur une partie du territoire
palestinien, avaient .surtout pour but de faire
rcssortir la verite suiYante: ron ne peut adopter
une position semblable sans avoir dument pris ell
con~ideration les conditions materielles, les con­
ditions economiques dans lesquelles cet Etat se
trouvera place au sein du monde arabe. Le
monde non arabe et non musulman ne pent done
youloir l'Etat juif sans en accepter en mcmc
temps les conditions de base. Quiconque se pro­
nonce pour un Etat juif souverain et indcpen­
dant doit savoir comment celui-ci fera face a
l'antagonisme du Proche Orient et de tout le
monde arabe.

:M. EL-KHOURI (Syrie) declare que nul Etat
ou pcuple arabe ne saurait souscrire a un texte
qui prcyoit une nouvelle immigration en Pales­
tine. De fait, les Arabes, en i'absence desquels
les termes du 11andat oni.. ete adoptes, n'ont
cesse depuis 10rs de c1amer leur opposition a
I'immigration qui s'est ensuivie.

Les dispositions relativcs a l'immigration doi­
\'eEt ct~c iJ.:s.< (~S a la decision des organes legis­
latifs d'un Etat indcpendant et demoeratique dc
Palestine, seuls compctcnts en la maticre.

1\'1. K YROU (Grecd, s'associant a une remar­
que faite par le representant de la France, rc­
grette que, a ce moment crucial des dcbats, la
Commission n'ait pas connaissance du point de
vue des parties interessces.

Le PRESIDE:--;T indique que l'une d'entre dIes
a deja manifeste son dcsir d'ctre entendue a
l'issue de la discussion sur les differents pro­
blemes soulevcs par un regime de tutclIe.

1\L PARODI (France) indique que, sur une
question cruciale comme eelIc de l'immigration,
l'intransigeance des parties risque d'ctre totale,

D'autre part, il serait difficile de demander a
l'Assemblee gcncrale de revenir sur sa resolution
anterieure si le regime recommande n 'avait pa.'"

181



of working out. For the Assembly would find
itself in a very embarassing position if the dif­
ficulties presented by the new plan were as great
as those entailed by resolution 181 (11) and in­
volved even heavier responsibilities for the
United Nations.

The parties should reconsider their posItIOns
on the question of immigration in a spirit of
conciliation. For if no specific ruling was laid
down, immigration might proceed in a dis­
orderly fashion. The Jews themselves would be
in danger of having to deal with a mass in­
flux of immigrants exceeding the absorptive
capacity of the country, and, of course, the very
fact of immigration constituted a risk for the
Arabs.

Therefore, the parties should strive to adopt
an objective attitude, for in the present case,
a rough and ready compromise was in their
common interest, and they should accept what­
ever reasonable figure was offered.

ARTICLE 31: LAND POLICY

Mr. JESSUP (United States of America) re­
ferred to his statement at the 127th meeting
and said that article 31, as well as the whole
of the working paper, was intended merely as
a basis of discussion.

Three points were essential. All discrimination
should be eliminated in the matter. In the second
place, the interests of small landowners or ten­
ants should be safeguarded in cases of land
transfer. Finally, and this was the third basic
principle of Article 31, imparlial experts should
recommend the criteria upon which the land
system should be based.

It was important to determine whether it
was appropriate to insert special provisions in
the trusteeship agreement on those tbree points,
or whether, as the Syrian representative had re­
quested, the details of those provisions could be
properly settled after the establishment of the
permanent regime.

The delegation of the United States did not
in any manner intend to suggest a final and
permanent solution to the problem in so far as
it involved nationality, immigration and land
policy. The measures suggested were of a dis­
tinctly provisional nature.

!\1r. l\IALlK (Lebanon) gave due credit to
conciliatory efforts which were in the highest
French tradition. But the three questions of im­
migration, nationality and land policy lay at
the very heart of the problem. A provisional
agreement, by its very nature, should not anti­
cipate the final solution; and, with all the good
will in the world, the Arabs could not yield on
three basic matters upon which the very pos­
sibility of establishing a Jewish State depended. ·1

\Vith regard to the "provisional" nature of the
rq;ime, the treatment of the entire question of I
Palestine had begun by "provisional" solutions

de bonnes chances de fonctionner. Car :si la nou.--

o

_,

velle proposition souleve les memes difficultes
que la resolution 181 (11), avec toutefois de
plus lourdes responsabilites pour I'Organisation
des Nations Unies, l'Assemblee sera dans une
situation fort embarrassante.

Sur cette question de l'immigration, les par­
ties se doivent de reconsiderer leur attitude dans
un esprit de conciliation. Car si l'on ne prevoit
aucune regIe particuliere, une immigration
desordonnee est possible. Le danger pour les
Juifs eux-memes serait de se trouver en presence
d'un afHux massif depassant les possibilites du
pays. Et, naturellement, le fait meme de l'immi­
gration constitue un risque pour les Arabes.

Que les parties fassent donc l'effort d'objecti­
vite necessaire, et, puisqu'une cote mal taillee est
en l'occurrence dans leur interet commun,
qu'elles acceptent done la fixation d~un chiffre
raisonnable.

ARTICLE 31: REGIME FONCIER

M. JESSUP (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) se re­
fere a la declaration qu'il a faite au cours de la
127erne seance et declare que l'article 31, comme
l'ensemble du document de travail, n'est destine
qu'a constituer une base de discussion.

Trois points sont essentiels. Premierement,
toute discrimination devrait etre exclue en ce
domaine. En second lieu, les interets des petits
proprietaires ou locataires doivent etre proteges
en cas de transfert. Enfin, et c'est le troisieme
des princ~pes sur lesquels repose l' article 31, des
experts impartiaux recommanderont les criteres
sur lesquels devra reposer le regime foncier.

Tels sont les points sur lesquels ii importe de
savoir si l'inclusion de clauses speciales dans
l'accord de tutelle est opportun ou si l'on est
dans le domaine des dispositions de detail qu'il
conviendrait de regler, comme le demande le
representant de la Syrie, apres l'etablissement du
regime definitif.

En ce qui concerne les trois questions de la
nationalite, de l'immigration et du regime fon­
cier, la delegation des Etats-Unis ne visc nulle­
ment a suggerer une solution definitive, per­
manente, du probleme. Les mesures proposees
ont un caractere eminemment provisoire.

M. :MALIK (Liban) rend hommage a des
efforts de conciliation qui sont dans la plus belle
tradition fran<.;aise. Mais avec les trois problemes
de l'immigration, du regime foncier et de la
nationalite, on est au creur de la question. Un
accord provisoire, en raison de sa nature meme,
ne doit pas anticiper sur la solution definitive, et
les Arabes ne peuvent, avec toute la bonne
volonte possible, ceder sur trois points essentiels
dont depend la possibilite mcme de la creation
d'un Etat juif. Quant au caractere "provisoire"
du regime, toute l'affaire de Palestine a com­
mence par du "provisoire" qui, ensuite, servit

182



which later served as precedents for progress
toward an end which was being unrelentingly
pursued.

It had been said that all discrimination should
be eliminated in matters of land policy. Yet, that
objective could only be realized if there were
no longer any restrictions on the availability
of land. However, Jewish properties were
not available. Consequently, the sole result of
the provisions suggested would be that land
could only be transferred in one direction, from
Arabs to Jews.

The matter would be very different if the
Jews were to relax their unyielding attitude. But
experience had shown that it was impossible to
hope for a conciliatory attitude on their part.

Mahmoud Bey FA\VZI (Egypt) associated
himself with the remarks of the representative
of Lebanon.

It was true that, under normal conditions in
a given country, no discrimination should be
practised. That supposed that transactions took
place among individuals, on a commercial rather
than a political basis. But, in the present case,
the entire country was being endangered by
the actions of a political organization which
was buying land for political purposes in order
to enlarge its sphere of influence, its power.

There were regulations regarding land policy
in Palestine. But the deficiencies of the present
system had allowed the Jews to acquire vast
stretches of land which could no longer be ac­
quired by anyone, and particularly, by no Pales­
tinian Arab. In the circumstances, how could
one accept, in all fairness, the article on non­
discrimination as it stood in the United States
working paper? On the contrary, a more strin­
gent and meticulous control should be exercised
over the possession and transfer of land.

The situation in Palestine-as it had again
been described-was the result of Jewish claims,
of their attempts to encroach upon a part of
the country. But what would be the situation
when the Palestinians realized that the Jews
were approaching their goal, that they were
going to be able to acquire not only part, but all
of the land?

The Arabs therefore declared that they were
irrevocably opposed to a provision such as
article 31 of the United States working paper.

1\loreover, it was net enough to speak of an
acquisition of land as "individual". There should
actually be a sincere and unequivocal transaction
between two individuals. The concept of non­
discrimination could therefore not be accepted
for it would in fact lead to real discrimination
against the legitimate inhabitants of Palestine.

In addition, article 31 and paragraph 2 of
article 9 of the working paper were closely con­
nected. In both cases, the Egyptian delegation

de precedent pour une avance vel'S un but
inexorablement poursuivi.

En ce qui conceme le regime foncier, on parle
de supprimer toute discrimination. Or le but ne
serait atteint que s'il n'existait plus aucune
restriction a la disponibilite des terres. !\lais les
terres des Juifs, elks, ne sont pas di~ponibles. Le
seul resultat des dispositions prevues serait done
que la cession des terres ne pourrait se faire que
dans un sens, des Arabes aux J uifs.

Il en irait differemment si les Juifs relachaient
leur intransigeance. Mais l'experience nous ap­
prcnd qu'une telle attitude de leur part est
exclue du domaine des possibilites.

1Iahmoud Bey FAWZI (Egypte) s'associe
aux observations du representant du Liban.

Il est vrai que, dans des circonstances nor­
males, au sein d'un pays donne, nulle discrimi­
nation ne devrait etre operee. Cela suppose que
les transactions s'opcrent entre individus, sur
une base commerciale et non politique. ~lais,

en l'occurrence, c'est tout un pays qui se voit
menace, c'est une organisation politique qui,
a des fins politiques, achcte des terres pour
etendre sa zone d'influence, son pouvoir.

Il existait bien en Palestine des dispositions
relatives au regime foncier. :Mais les lacunes du
systeme ont permis aux Juifs d'acqucrir ele
vastes etendues de terres qui ont cesse d'etre
susceptibles d'acquisition par qui que ce soit et
particulierement par un Arabe de Palestine.
Dans de telles circonstances, comment pourrait­
on, en toute equite, admettre la clause de non­
discrimination telle qu'elle est prevue dans le
document de travail des Etats-Unis? Il faut, au
contraire, controler plus strictement et plus
minutieusement la possession et le transfert des
terres.

La situation en Palestine - telle qu'on l'a
encore depeinte aujourd'hui - est le fruit des
revendications des Juifs, de leurs tentativcs pour
s'emparer d'une partie de la Palestine. !\lais
qu'arriverait-il si lcs Palestiniens voyaient que
les Juifs sont prcs du but, qu'ils vont pouvoir
acqucrir non pas une partie mais la totalite des
terres?

Les Arabes declarent done qu'ils s'opposent
absolument a un article de la nature de l'article
31 du document de travail des Etats-Unis.

D'autre part, il ne suffit pas de qualifier une
acquisition d'individuelle. Il doit s'agir, effective­
ment, d'une transaction sincere et sans equi­
voque, entre deux individus. Il est done impos­
sible d'accepter ceUe idee de non-discrimination
qui aboutirai~ en fait a une veritable discrimina­
tion contre la poul-ation legitime de Palestine.

Il existe egalement un lien etroit entre l'article
31 et le paragraphe 2 de l'article 9 du document
de travail. Dans les deux cas, la delegation de

183



was opposed to all discrimination in Palestine,
including that which might be practised against
the original, legitimate inhabitants of the country.

Sir ~10hammed ZAFRULLAH KHAN (Paki­
stan) recalled the remarks made by the repre­
sentative of France. He pointed out that he had
not intended to say that there should be no regu··
lation of immigration. His objection was directed
to the introduction of new regulations. He had
suggested that the present quotas, which satisfied
neither of the parties, should remain in force
pending a final settlement of the matter.

Doubtless, neither the Arab States, nor the
representatives of the Jewish community were
willing to accept that view. However, any altera­
tion of the quotas in one or the other direction,
would prejudge the situation to the detriment
either of the Jews or of the Arabs.

'Vith regard to land policy, discrimination
could legitimately be prohibited under normal
conditions. But in so far as present conditions
deviated from the normal, certain corrective
measures should be taken.

For the past thirty years, all the difficulties
which had arisen in that tiny land sprang from
the desire of the Jewish community to establish
a State which it could dominate politically. That
Jewish policy was encountering the opposition of
the Arabs who, thirty years ago, constituted
almost the entire population of Palestine. In
order to build up their State, the Jews resorted
to immigration .1nd colonization. They were at­
tempting' to attain their ends by the following
system: any land acquired for the use of Jewi~h

immigrants was purchased by the Jewish Na­
tional Fund and became the final property of
the Je,vish community. It was withdrawn from
circulation regardless of the laws and regulations
concerning land transfer. Provisions for non­
discrimination 'would never become applicable
to it because, in actual fact, it would forever
be the property of the Jewish community. In
the same way, it could neither be leased to an
Arab, nor exploited by an Arab without in­
curring penalties, which became more severe
\vith each repetition of the offence.

Consequently, measures for non-discrimination
would simply authorize the Jewish National
I; and to buy up Arab land and thus render
it untransf~rable. In that tiny land once popu­
lated to the extent of '99 per cent by Arabs,
\vhere the ('ventual establishment of a Jewish
State depended on land policy, pseudo non­
discrimination would allow the Jewish com­
munity to buy as much land as it could pay for
fron the Arabs, while its own practices would I

prevent resale of land to the Arabs.

The regulations of 1939 and 1940, based on
twenty years of experience, were intended to
Sc:'1frguard the rights and interests of the native I

l'Egypte est opposee a toute discrimination en
Palestine, y compris celle qui pourrait jouer
contre les occupants legitimes et originaires de
la Palestine.

Sir Mohammed ZAFRULLAH KHAN (Pakis­
tan), a propos de l'intervention du representant
de la France, precise que son intention n'etait
pas de se prononcer pour l'absence de toute
reglementation en matiere d'immigration. Ce
contre quoi il s'est prononcp. est l'intrcduction
de regles nouvelles. Ce qu'il a suggere, c'est que
les chiffres actuds, G.~i ne satisfont aucune des
parties, soient maintenus jusqu'a ce que ces
questions puissent faire l'objet d'un reglement
veritable.

Les Etats arabes, pas plus sans doute que les
representants de la communaute juive, n'accep­
tent ce point de vue. ~1ais toute modification des
quotas dans un sens ou dans l'autre prejugerait
la situation au detriment soit des J ulfs, soit dC$.
Arabes.

En ce qui concerne le regime foncier, la pro­
hibit~on de toute discrimination est legitime dans
des conditions normales. :Mais dans la mesure
ou ron s'ecarte de la normale, une correction
do.it ctre operee, certaines mesures doivent ctre
prIses.

Sur ce petit coin de terre, toutes les difficultes,
depuis trente ans, viennent de la volonte de la
communaute juive d'etablir un . Etat qu'elle
dominerait politiquement. Cette politique juivc
rencontre l'opposition des Arabes qui, au debut
de cctte periode, constituaient la presque totalite
de la population. Pour constituer leur Etat, les
J uifs reCOllrent a l'immigration et a la colonic;;a­
tion. IJs tentent d'arriver a leurs fins en appli­
quant le systeme suivant: toute terre achetcc
pour le benefice des immigrants juifs est achetee
par ou pour le compte du Fonds national
juif et devient definitivement propriete de
la communautc juive. Elle est retiree de la
circulation, quoi qu'il en puisse ctre des lois ou
rcglements relatifs a son alienation: en particu­
lier, les dispositions relatives a l'absence de dis­
crimination n'auraient jamais l'occasion de lui
etre appliquees puisque, en fait, elle sera a
jamais possedee par la communaute juive. Dc
meme, eUe ne peut ctre ni louee a un Arabe, ni
exploitee par un Arabe, sous pein~ de sanctions
qui s'aggravent en cas de recidive.

Ainsi, le seul resultat de la prohibition de toute
discrimination serait de permettre au Fonds
national juif d' acheter des terres arabes, les
rendan~ par la inalienables. Sur cc coin de terre,
nagucre peuple de 99 pour 100 d'Arabes et sur
lequel la possibilite de creation d'un Etat juif
depend du regime foncier, une pseudo non-dis­
crimination permettrait a la communaute juive
d'acheter aux Arabes autant de terres qu'elk
peut en payer, alors que ses propres pratique.c;
empccheraient toute revcnte allX Arabes.

Les rcglements de 1939 et de 1940, fondes
sur vingt ans d'experience, visaient a proteger
les interets et les droits de la population origi-

I

184



population, under the very tenns of the Balfour
Declaration, and to rescue the great majority
of the Arab population from actually being re­
duceJ to a state of proletarianism. If full freedom
were restored in land tran~a.ctions, the absorptive
capacity of Palestine would increase, so far as
the Jews were concerned, and the native popula­
tion would soon find itself utterly deprived of
means of existence.

If all discrimination was to be eliminated and
imm;gration and land purcha"e were to be free,
and if the definition of nationality or citizenship
were extended, the Arabs would be forced to
plead for partition before the trusteeship ter­
minated, in order to keep what little remained
to them.

Even if the regulations laid down in 1939-
1940 were temporarily removed during the
period of trusteeship, it could no longer be sug­
gested that they should be re-established in the
future. 'Vith the native population deprived of
protection, monopolization of land would con­
tinuc incxorJ.bly for the sole benefit of a parti­
cular community. The usual incentives for
purchase or sale were not involved. The attempt
was being made to settle immigrants in a land
which could never again be returned to its
original owners.

~Ir. PARODI (France) was not sure whether
it was wise to prO\'ide so ab~olutely for the pro­
hib:tion of any discrimination. It would not be
advisable to allow non-immigrant strangers to
henefit from this provision.

~fr. EL-KHOCRI (Syria) hoped the representa­
tive of the United Kingdom would furnish de­
tails shO'\\·ing that there was no strict prohibition
to own and pnrcha~e land as some representa­
tives seemed to think. ~foreover, it should be
fully realized that while the Arab fanners and
peasants were the sellers, the buyers were as
covetous as they were rich with hundreds of
millions collected abroad. The seller, intimidated
by terrorism, was offered high prices for his land.
The buyer came not as a refugee but in order
to pursue well-known political aims.

The present restnctlOns could not be aban­
doned without detriment to the peasants, the
Arabs.

On the request of the CHAIRMAN, Mr.
CREECH JO:-iES (United Kingdom) pointed out
that the problems of nationality and land pur­
chase were the fundamental difficulties between
the two main communities in Palestine. Despite
all efforts at finding a solution, they had made
the ~1andate unworkable.

Those efforts had taken place over a period
of many years. \Vould it be possible to do better
from now until 15 1vIay?

The terms of the Mandate obliged the Man­
datory Power to respect the interests of all com­
munities and not only those of immigrants. The

naire, seIon les tennes mcmes de la Declaration
Balfour, et a sauver d'une veritable proletarisa­
tion la grande majorite de la population arabe.
Si 1'0n rctablissait la libertc totale des transac­
tions foncieres, la capacite d'absorption de la
Palestine augmcnterait, en ce qui concerne les
Juifs, tandis que la population originaire se
verrait un jour completement privce de ses
moyens d'existence.

Si 1'0n pretend que toute discrimination doit
ctre abolie, que l'imm;gration et les achats de
terre doivent etre libres, si 1'0n elargit la defini­
tion de la nationalite ou de la citoyennete, les
Arabes en serant reduits, avant que le regime de
tutelle ne prenne fin, a demander en grace le
partage, pour conserver le peu qui leur restera.

Ne ferait-on que supprimer provisoirement,
pour la duree de la tutelle, les restrictions etablies
en 1939-1940, que l'on ne pourrait mcme sug­
gerer leur rctablissement dans l'avenir. La popu­
lation originaire privee de: protection, l'entrepri:-e
de monopolisation des terres se poursuivrait im­
placablement, au seul profit d'une communaute
particuliere. Car il ne s'agit pa~ des mobi!es
habituels d'une vente ou d'un achat; il s'agit
d'etablir des immigrants sur une terre qui ne
pourra jamais plus revenir a ses premiers pos­
sesseurs.

~1. PARODl (France) doute qu'il soit utile de
prevoir, sous une forme absolue, l'interdiction de
toute discrimination. I1 ne serait pas souhaitable
que des etrangers, non immigrant" puissent
beneficier de cette disposition.

:M. EL-KHovRI (Syrie) desirerait voir le re­
presentant du Royaume-Uni apporter queIqucs
precisions qui montreraient qu'il n'existe pas
d'interdiction absolue de possession et d'achat de
terre, comme certains representants semblent le
penser. D'autre part, il faut bien comprendre
que, tandis que ceux qui vendent de la terre sont
des paysans et des fermiers arabes, l'achcteur est
une entite aussi cupide que riche des centaines

, de millions reunis a l'etranger. Le vendeur, in­
timide par des actes de terrarisme, se voit offrir
d'autre part un prix eleve. L'acheteur vient non
en rCfugie, mais pour poursuivre des fins politi­
ques trop connues.

Lt's restrictions actuelles ne pem'ent etre aban­
donnees sans qu'il y ait peril pour les paysans,
les Arabes.

Sur la demande du President, ~L CREECH­
JO~ES fRoyaume-Uni) indique que la nationa­
lite et le problcme foncier constituent deux des
difficultes fondamentalc., qui opposent les deu::\:
principales communautes et qui, en drpit de
tous les efforts faits pour leur trouvcr une solu­
tion, rendirent le ~fandat inapplicable.

Or, ces efforts ont pOliC sur plusieurs annces.
Fera-t-on mieux maintenant, d'ici le 15 mai?

Les termes du ~Iandat obligeaient la Puis..;a:r:ce
mandataire a respecter les in-tcrct" de toutes les
communautes et non seulement ceux des immi-

185



regulations which had been revised several times
had finally resulted in the regime of the White
Paper of 1939.

Jewish opposition had been particularly
strong. ~Ioreover, the commissions which exam­
ined these regulations did not find them satis­
factory and thought that Jewish protests were
not unfounded. However, although it had been
possible to criticize it was more difficult to sug­
gest regulations that were more practical and
better adapted to local conditions. The Anglo­
American Committee of Inquiry, in particular,
had freely criticized these regulations and had
finally suggested that others should be drawn up
but had given no indication whatever in this
conneXlOn.

Consequently these regulations were still in
force and the country was divided into two kinds
of areas according to whether the Jews could
or could not acquire land there. During recent
years, however, the Administration had not
shown much activity or made vigorous efforts
to enforce those regulations. This was due to the
existence of considerable conflicts of views in
Palestine and to the feeling that there was room
for sonle revision although it was never very
clear along what lines that revision should be
made.

If consideration was given to land arrange­
ments in the future, this problem should be ap­
proached with a completely open mind but
without prejudice to existing rights or to some
guarantees aimed at preventing the Arabs from
becoming a class of landless peasantry.

The question of citizenship was covered by a
series of orders made from 1925 to 1932. First
of all, the former Turkish subjects became.
Palestinians at the time of the setting up of the
~Iandate; moreover, citizenship could be ac­
quired by birth or when the person concerned
had a Palestinian father. Lastly, naturalization
\vas also possible under certain conditions: resi­
dence of two or three years immediately pre­
ceding the application; good character; adequate
knowledge of either Arabic, Hebrew or English;
the intention to reside in Palestine. It should
also be added that the High Commissioner was
empowered to take exceptional measures to
grant citizenship in special cases.

Mr. Creech Jones said he was ready to pro­
vide further infonnation on that subject if the
Committee deemed it necessary.

ARTICLE 35: EXTER~AL AFFAIRS

11r. JESSUP (United States of America) said
that the United States delegation had thought it
desirable to assign to the governor-general, act­
ing under the Trusteeship Council, responsibility
during this temporary period for conducting
the external affairs of Palestine. Consequently,
the governor-general should be empowered
to sign treaties subject to approval by the
Trusteeship Council.

grants. Finalement, la reglementation, plusieufS
fois modifiee, aboutit au regime du Livre blanc
de 1939.

De la part des Juifs, I'opposition fut des plus
vives. D'autre part, les commissions qui exami­
nerent ces reglements ne les ont pas juges satis­
faisants, et ont pense que les protestations juives
n'ctaient pas sans fondement. Toutefois, si I'on
a pu formuler ces critiques, il etait tres difficile
de suggerer des reglements plus pratiques et plus
appropries aux conditions locales. La Commis­
sion d'enquete anglo-americaine, en particuler,
critiqua a loisir les reglements et suggera finale­
ment qu'on en ctablisse d'autres, mais dIe ne
donna aucune indication acet egard.

Ces reglements sont donc toujours en vigueur,
le pays etant divise en deux sortes de zones, seIon
que les Juifs peuvent ou non acquerir de la
terre. Cependant, l'Administration n'a pas, dans
les dernieres annees, deploye beaucoup d'acti­
vite ni fait de bien vigoureux efforts pour les
mettre en application. C'est que, en Palestine,
les plus grandes divergences de vues existaient
et l'on pensait qu'une revision devait se faire,
sans savoir d'ailleurs selon quels principes.

Si l'on doit, a I'avenir, traiter du regime fon­
cier, il conviendrait d'approcher le probleme en
toute liberte d'esprit, sans prejudice toutefois des
droits r:xistants ni de certaines garanties tendant
a ce que les Arabes ne deviennent pas une classe
de paysans sans terres.

En ce qui concerne la nationalite, une serie
de decrets ont ete pris de 1925 a 1932. En pre­
mier lieu, a la date de i'etablissement du
I\fandat, les anciens sujets turcs sont devenus
Palestiniens. D'autre part, la nationalite pouvait
ctre acquise par la naissance ou lorsque I'in­
tcresse avait un pere palestinien. Enfin, la
naturalisation etait possible, sous certaines con­
ditions: residence de deux ou trois ans avant la
demande, production d'un certificat de bonne
vie et mreurs, connaissance de l'ar~he, de
I'hcbreu ou de l'anglais, intention de rester en
Palestine. 11 faut ajouter egalement que le Haut
Commissaire avait le pouvoir de prendre des
mesures exceptionnelIes d'octroi de nationalite.

~1. Creech-Jones se declare pret, si la Commis­
sion le juge necessaire, a lui soumettre des in­
formations complementaires sur ce sujet.

ARTICLE 35: AFFAlRES EXTERIEURES

~L JESSUP (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) declare
qll'il a paru souhaitable a la delegation des
Etats-Unis d'attribuer au gouverneur general,
sous l' autoritc du Conseil de tutelle, la responsa­
bilitc de la condllite des affaires exterieures de
la Palestine pendant la pfriode de transition.
En consequence, le gouverneur general serait
habilite a signer des traites sous reserve de l'ap­
probation du Conseil de tutelle.

I

186



Provisions must also be made for the protec­
tion of the interests of Palestine and of the
citizens of Palestine elsewhere.

Lastly, as regards the official representatives
and the property of foreign Powers in Palestine,
paragraph 7 of article 35 stated the principle of
immunities which would be no less than those
enforced under the Mandate.

Broadly speaking, the delegation of the
United States attached particular importance to
the economic, social and cultural development
of the country. Consequently article 35 provided
for the adherence of Palestine to ". . . interna­
tional conventions and recommendations drawn
up by the United Nations or by the specialized

. "agencIes...

It was necessary to bear in mind not only the
mere mechanics of administration but also the
utilization of all the resources of the United
Nations for the d~velopment of that country.
This was what the working paper had attempted
to do under the heading "External Affairs".

Mr. EL-KHOURI (Syria) referred to the
thought expressed several times by the United
States representative that Palestine should be
helped in her economic development. But Pales­
tine did not need a sympathy which was J~rected

toward her resources and the exploitation of
these resources. \Vhat she needed was peace and
political independence. A provisional authority
should not be empowered to grant concessions
and to conclude treaties as if it were a permanent
authority. This was a prerogative of the future
independent government of Palestine.

ARTICLE 47: TERMINATION OF TRUSTEESHIP

1fr. JESSUP (United States of America)
stressed the temporary nature of the regime. This
emphasized the importance of the provisions
for determining the appropriate time at which
trusteeship should be terminated, or at least, for
indicating the formula according to which this
time would be determined. Trusteeship could be
terminated, for instance, when the parties con­
cerned were able mutually to agree upon the
future of PaleStine and to organize appropriate
governmental institutions. Such an agreement
would be made easier by the measures to be
taken by the governor-general to bring the
Jewish and Arab communities to an agreement.

Some members of the Committee might wish
to suggest, for instance, that if the parties did not I
reach an agreement after one or two years, the I

General Assembly should reconsider the question I
and decide whether some new plan should be
adopted.

Sir ~lohammed ZAFRULLAH KHAN (Pakis­
tan) said that the question of the termination
of the trusteeship scheme was almost as impor­
tant as the question of the adoption and putting
into force of that scheme.

11 est egalement necessaire de pourvoir aux
intcrets de la Palestine et de ses citoyens a
1
,,
etranger.

Enfin, en ce qui concerne les representants
officiels et les biens des Puissances etrangeres en
Palestine, le paragraphe 7 de l'article 35 pose le
principe d'immunites non inferieures a celIes
qui avaient cours sous le ~fandat.

D'une manicre generale, la delegation des
Etalc;-Unis attache une importance particulicre
au deveIoppement economique, social et cuIturel
du pays. Aussi, l'article 35 prevoit-il l'adhesion
de la Palestine a des"... conventions et recom­
mandations internationales elaborees par l'Or­
ganisation des Nations U nies ou par des institu­
tions specialisees ..."

n ne s'agit pas seulement du mecanisme de
radministration, il faut songer a utiliser toutes
les rcssources des Nations Unies pour le develop­
pement du pays. C'est ce que le document de
travail s'efforce de faire sous la rubrique
"Affaires exterieures".

M:. EL-KHOURI (Syrie) se refcre a l'idee plu­
sieurs fois exprimee par le representant des
Etats-U nis que la Palestine doit etre aidee dans
son developpement economiqlle. Mais la Pales­
tine se passerait fort bien de cette sympathie a
I'egard de ses ressources et de leur exploitation.
Cc dont eIle a besoin, c'est de paix et d'indepen­
dance poIitique. Il ne convient pas de donner a
une autorite provisoire le droit d'accorder des
concessions et de conclure des traites comme si
eIle devait etre permanente: ceci est le privilege
du futur gouvernement independant de la
Palestine.

ARTICLE 47: FIN DU REGIME DE TUTELLE

M. jESSUP (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) insiste
sur le caractere provisoire du regime qui donne
toute leur importance aux rcgles qui determine­
ront le moment OU la tuteIle prendra fin ou, tout
au moins, qui indiqueront la formule selon la­
quelle ce moment sera determine. On pourrait
envisager, par exemple, que la tuteIle prenne fin
au moment OU les parties seront en mesure de se
mettre d'accord sur l'avenir de la Palestine et
sur l'organisation d'institutions gouvernementales
appropriees. Cet accord sera facilite par les
mesures que devra prendre le gouverneur general
pour amener les communautes juive et arabe a
un accord.

Ccrtains membres de la Commission suggere­
rant peut-ctre, par exemple, que si les parties ne
se sont pas mises d'accord aprcs un ou deux aDS,
I'Assemblee generale reconsiderera la question
pour decider si un nouveau plan ue doit pas
ctre adoptee

Sir 1fohammed ZAFRULLAH KHAN (Pakis­
tan) declare que la question de la date d'expira­
tion de la tuteIIe n'est pas loin d'ctre aussi im­
portante que ce!le de l'adoption et de la mise
en execution du regime.

187



Agreement between the two communities
should bring about the end of trusteeship as
soon as that agreement was reached.

But the Pakistan delegation warned the Com­
mittee against provisions making the termination
of trusteeship dependent upon l decision of the
General Assembly. If such decision were based
upon an agreement of the parties no objections
could be raised.

But if this just meant a bare decision by the
requisite m~jority of the General Assembly, it
would be well to remember that the resolution
of 29 November 1947 would have been entirely
different if the vote had taken place three days
before, or somewhere else than New York, or
else a year later. It would be very dangerous
therefore to provide for the trusteeship scheme
being terminated by a decision of the General
AssemLly alone.

The del~gation of Pakistan was in favour of
the trusteeship scheme or of any other scheme
designed to secure peace in Palestine and to
set up an administrative system which would put
an end to chaos. \Vhen the efforts made were
aimed at finding a just solution to the problem,
this was perfectly legitimate. But the delegation
of Pakistan could not support the trusteeship
scheme if it was only designed to alleviate diffi­
culties resulting from the termination of the
:Mandate and from the absence of any other
legal solution or to set up an administrative
regime and to provide an armed force with a
view to carrying out the partition scheme later.

This was the spirit in which the delegation of
Pakistan opposed the termination of trusteeship
being made dependent upon the decision, pure
and simple, of the Generdl .Assembly for, in
this case, it should be feared that the trustee­
sllip sch~me would in the end lead to the parti­
tion scheme.

~Ir. PARODl (France) said that the termina­
tion of tnlsteeship was subordinated, in the text
under discussion, to an agreement between the
parties, and it was obviously difficult to reach
such an agreement. In spite of what the repre­
sentative of Pakistan had said, the trusteeship
fcLeme would have been set up by the General
Assembly, and the General Assembly should
have the right to put an end to this regime.

~Ir. EnA~ ('Jewish Agency for Palestine) said
he undel1'toocl that the Security Council had
reccin:d from the Truce Commission in Palestine
a further communication which had a direct
bearing on the je\''r'ish Agency. He a..<;;ked that
this communication should be submitted to the
Committee at an appropriate time.

The meeting rose at 6.8 p.m.

L'accord des deux communautes devrait en­
trainer la fin de la tutelle, au moment meme de
sa conclusion.

~1ais la delegation du Pakistan met en garde
la Commission contre une disposition qui ferait
dependre la fin de la tutelle d'une decision de
l'Assemblee generale. Sans doute, si celle-ci
devait etre fondee sur l'accord des parties, au­
cune objection ne pourrait ctre formulee.

Mais s'il ne s'agit que d'une pure decision de
l'Assemblee generale a la majorite requise, il
serait bon de se souvenir que la resolution du 29
novembre 1947 eut cte fort differente si I'on
avait vote trois jours plus tot, ou bien ailleurs
qu'a New-York, ou bien un an plus tard. Il
serait donc fort dangereux de prevoir qu'unc
decision de l'Assemblee generale puisse, a eUe
seule, mettre fin au regime de tutelle.

La delegation du Pakistan se prononce en
faveur d'un plan de tutelle ou de tout autre
plan de nature a assurer la paix en Palestine
et a amener !'installation d'un regime adminis­
tratif mettant fin au chaos. Si les efforts accom­
plis tendent a amener une juste solution du
probleme, ceci est parfaitement legitime. ~1ais

la delegation du Pakistan ne peut appuyer le
plan de tutelle si 1'0n ne songe qu'a pallier les
difTicultes qui resultent de la fin du ~1andat et
de l'absence de toute autre solution juridique,
qu'a crecr un regime administratif et qu'a ins­
taller des forces armccs dans l'intention de
mettre ensuite a execution le plan de partage.

C'est dans cet esprit que la delegation du
Paki.<;tan s'opposc a cc que la fin de la tutellc
dcpende d'une decision pure et simple de l'As­
semblee gcnerale, car, dans cc cas, il serait a
craindre que le plan de tutelle ne conduise en
fin de compte au plan de partage.

:M. PARODI (France) indique que la fin de la
tlltelle se trouve suborclonnce, dans le textc en
discussion, a un accord entre les parties, ce qui
est une condition difficile a remplir. Malgre
l'observation formulee par le representant du
Pakistan, c'est l'Assemblee generale, qui aura
donne naissance au plan de tutelle, qui doit
avoir le droit de mettre fin a ce regime.

1\1. EBA~ (Agence juive pour la Palestine)
croit savoir que le Conseil de securite a rec;u de
la Commission de trcve en Palestine une nou­
vclle communication interessant directement
l'Agcnce juive. 11 demande que cette communi­
cation soit, en tcmps voulu, soumise a la Com­
1111&;lOn.

La seance est levee a 18 h. 8.

188




